ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 1, 2009
3:17 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representati ve M ke Chenaul t
Representati ve John Coghill
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 68

"An Act meking sales of and offers to sell certain energy
resources by a refiner at prices that are exorbitant or
excessive an unlawful act or practice under the Al aska Unfair
Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Act."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 68
SHORT TI TLE: PRI CE GOUQ NG | NVOLVI NG ENERGY RESOURCES

SPONSCR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) PETERSEN, GARA, TUCK, GRUENBERG
KAWASAKI

01/ 20/ 09 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 16/ 09

01/ 20/ 09 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H L&C, JUD, FIN

02/ 04/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 04/ 09 (H MEETI NG CANCELED

03/ 25/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 25/ 09 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 25/ 09 (H M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 01/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- April 1, 2009



PETE ROBERTS
Hormer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 68.

JUSTI N PONELL
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 68.

RANDY CGRI FFI N
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 68.

STEVEN MCCOY
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 68.

JAVEN OSE
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 68.

PAUL KENDALL
Hormer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 68.

EDI TH TOM NY
North Pol e, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 68.

DAVI D OTNESS
Cordova, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 68.

AVES THOMPSON

Executive Director

Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation (ATA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 68.

CLYDE (ED) SN FFEN, JR., Senior Assistant Attorney General
Commerci al / Fair Business Section, G vil D vision (Anchorage)
Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provi ded comrents and answered questions
during the discussion of HB 68.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- April 1, 2009



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prinme sponsor of HB 68, testified and
answered questions during the discussion of the bill.

DAVI D DUNSMORE, St af f

Representati ve Pete Petersen

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 68,
on behalf of the prime sponsor, Representative Pete Petersen.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:17: 47 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:17 p.m Representatives Buch,

Coghill, Lynn, and O son were present at the call to order.
Representatives Chenault and Neuman arrived as the neeting was
in progress. Representatives Tuck, Stoltze, and Ranras were

al so in attendance.

HB 68- PRI CE GOUG NG | NVOLVI NG ENERGY RESOURCES

3:18: 13 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 68, "An Act nmaking sales of and offers to sell
certain energy resources by a refiner at prices that are
exorbitant or excessive an unlawful act or practice under the
Al aska Unfair Trade Practices and Consuner Protection Act."

3:18: 29 PM

PETE ROBERTS offered his belief that energy pricing is done in a
byzantine way in Al aska. He said, “No where else in the world
is natural gas priced relative to fuel prices, crude oil prices,
or many of the other things we have to deal wth for natural gas
in the Railbelt.” He stated that has increased heating prices,
and electric prices by 40 percent. He suggested that the
commttee review in a detailed way and rewite |aws concerning
pricing natural gas. He said, “I have no problem for these guys
charging 120 or 130 percent of Henry Hub, but | think if you
figure it out they're probably getting nore |Iike 200 percent for
their gas.” He acknowl edged that he is not an expert but

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- April 1, 2009



something is wong with energy being twice as costly in Al aska
as anywhere el se, while Al aska is an energy producing state.

MR. ROBERTS offered that nost petrol eum products sold in Al aska
originate at Flint HIlls and Tesoro. He stated that those
refineries appear to set the price at wll. He said, “l again
have no problem with them making a reasonable profit, even
better than a refinery can nmake in the south 48, but there is
sonething wong with three weeks ago ny son paying a $1.55 for
gasoline in California, the nost expensive state in the union in
terns of taxes and everything else. And here |I’'m paying as nuch
as $1.92 today or $2.92 in Homer for gasoline. And here we are
one of the largest energy producers in the nation and there’s

sonet hing wong here.” He suggested that the |egislature pass a
law for the state to sell a small portion of the Al askans’ share
of crude oil at about $30 per barrel. He opined that it is not

enough petroleumto make a difference in the long termviability
of the state treasury. Furthernore, the state could inplenent a
tax structure that is punitive if the oil conpanies go above 120
percent of profit anywhere else for refined products. He opined
t he Departnent of Revenue could nonitor costs.

MR. ROBERTS offered his belief that the state allows electric

power and fuel that is nonopolistic. He enphasized that it is
up to the government to control those rigidly. However
government has been unwilling to do that. He further stated

that had this been inplenented five years ago, that the state
coul d have the cheapest fuel in the nation with an econom c boom
in the Railbelt and Sout heast Al aska. He pointed out the super
high prices in rural Al aska for fuel. He asked nenbers to
“rum nate” about this. He said, “W need to look at this in the
large scale sense, not in tweaking one thing or tweaking
another, or putting a little tax on this or that. W need to
change the way all energy products are priced within the State
of Al aska.”

3:24: 03 PM

CHAIR OLSON commented that the legislature reviewed the costs of
gas for Agrium Inc. to attenpt to assist them in obtaining gas
| ess than market value, but discovered it would require a state
constitutional change to sell petroleum for |less than the market
rate.

3:24: 26 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- April 1, 2009



JUSTIN PONELL stated that he provides services for the website
fai rbanksgas. com He opined this bill is far too inportant to
die in commttee. Constituents are paying over $2.67 per gallon
in North Pole, yet the gas stations are less than two mles away
from the refineries that obtain their crude oil directly from
the Trans- Al aska Pipeline System (TAPS). He said:

In nmy testinony today, |’m going to point out severa
om ssi ons from t he House Judi ci ary St andi ng
Commttee’s (HIUD) report that dramatically affects
the conclusions reached by the conmttee Chair. The
burden that high gas prices have on Al askan residents
is real. The price gouging we have endured over the
last year 1is unjustified. Gasoline, diesel, and
heating oil are not luxury itens that households can
sinply go w thout. High energy prices have a ripple
ef fect throughout the econony as every resident pays
for a high fuel cost several tinmes over. W’ ve been
payi ng over $1 a gallon nore than U.S. averages at the
gas punps and this has been a highly visible and
contenti ous issue.

MR. POWNELL offered his belief that costs have been 175 percent
for gasoline and 536 percent for diesel. He opined that nmargins
have been well above average. He pointed out that residents pay
nore for freight, food, clothing, and retail products. Al askans
pay nore to heat their honmes, drive to work, only to pay nore
for goods and services as business pass on their additional
energy costs. He further opined that what was |lacking fromthe

HJUD report was quantitative information. He reported that
based upon the latest published information the annual gasoline
consunption in Alaska is 285 mllion gallons annually. He

specified that wusing the conservative estimate of $.80 per
gallon over Seattle prices, that Alaskans have already paid a
staggering $230 nillion over the past year in gasoline expenses
al one. He argued this is noney that |eaves the state and does
not provide any benefits to residents. He described that froma
| abor and comrerce perspective that this adds to business
expenses and reduces personal spending. He understood the
ripple effect of the $230 mllion is in excess of a billion
dollars annually, if it were to stay within the state’ s econony.

MR. POWNELL recalled the HIUD report indicated that Fort Geely,
Ei el son Air Force base and Fort Wai nwight would be inpacted and
possi bly shut down by any possible |egislation. One far flung
conclusion suggested that the mlitary would sacrifice the
nati onal defense if jet fuel increased several cents per gallon

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- April 1, 2009



He noted that the increasing threat from North Korea dictates
t hat Al aska air def enses remain r eady and capabl e.
Additionally, the prinme supplier for all mlitary installations
in Alaska is the Petrostar refinery, which would be exenpted
under sub section (f) of this bill, he opined. He related that
testinmony has been given that indicates that Alaska' s snall
mar ket is a factor of high gasoline prices.

3:27:47 PM

MR. POWMELL said, “What is really going on is that a virtual
nonopoly has been created by Flinthills and Tesoro. As ot hers
conpetitors cannot access our market due to lack of tank space
at the Port of Anchorage and the fact that in-state refiners
have significant |ower transportation costs than a potential
out si de conpetitor.”

MR. POWNELL said, “In conclusion, HB 68 is a fair and reasonabl e
measure that protects Alaskans from price gouging by
billionaires and would have a positive affect on our econony.
| ndustries such as fishing, tourism recreation, and ground
transportation are all dramatically affected by high energy
costs.” He opined that if the $230 million were spent in Al aska

that it would benefit Al aska’ s econony, “rather than subsidizing
the profits of David and Charles Koch, two of the richest nmen in
Aneri ca. | urge you to nove this bill to a floor vote. Thank
you.”

3:28:52 PM

RANDY GRIFFIN stated that he is a longtine Al aska resident. He
related that he does not want to pay high fuel costs but is
opposed to HB 68. He explained that he does not think it is the
pl ace of the federal governnent to dictate to private businesses
the prices that they sell their products since they are private

products. He offered that one renmedy for high prices is
conpetition. He referred to groceries shipped to Al aska, adding
that he would also not want price controls with groceries. He

preferred to use conpetition to bring down prices. He suggested
that if tank space or infrastructure is needed that the state
could help build infrastructure so that conpetition could better
serve the area. He opined that prices in Al aska may be due to
hi gher operating costs and smaller refineries. He offered his
belief that price controls discourage investnment and “is just a
bad deal all around.” He said, “Nay on HB 68. Thank you.”

3:31: 28 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- April 1, 2009



STEVEN MCCOY noted the inportance of consunmers to the

| egi sl ature. He offered his belief that there is a clear
difference in state gas taxes. He related that it allows
profits for refineries to be higher since the illusion is the
price is less since Alaska’'s gas taxes are 11 cents below the
nati onal average. He related that Alaska’s gas tax is $.08
whereas California’s tax is $.43 per gallon. Thus, if

California is charging $1.89 conpared to Alaska' s price of
$2.30, there is actually $.80 difference that the refineries

gai n. He opined that Hawaii is a poor exanple since it has to
import all crude oil over vast distances, has no oil of its own,
and has a $.34 gas tax. He further opined that there is not a

reasonable free market in Alaska due to the huge investnent
mar kets, building a refinery and a pipeline system

MR.  MCCOY suggested that iif a person approached a bank
requesting funding for an enterprise that would buy gasoline and
purchase a ship to ship it to Alaska for resale that the bank
“ woul d 1 ook at you and say you're nuts.”

3:34:20 PM

MR. MCCOY related that Tesoro would control the profit |evel
until the person could no longer afford the paynents. He
offered his belief that it is not possible for a person to
conpete with large oil conpanies and refineries that own a |arge
share of the market. He opined that if Safeway owned 80 percent

of the grocery market, the legislature would be alarned. He
said, “Don't let that happen. You have an obligation to the
i ndi vidual s and businesses of the state because this is not a
free market situation.” He further opined that what consuners

want is for the conpany to identify their costs and to justify
their costs.

3:35:51 PM

REPRESENTATIVE NEUMAN related his understanding that the
attorney general’s office and particularly M. Sniffen reviewed
the refineries costs. He recalled the attorney general’s office
concl uded there was not any price gougi ng.

MR. MCCOY opined that the report did not discuss profit |evels.
He further opined that the report concluded the refineries were
not doing anything that was not consistent with current state
law. He offered his belief that if the |egislature enacted | aws
that required the refineries to only earn reasonable profits

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- April 1, 2009



that the attorney general would take a different view He said,
“You owe it to us to nake reasonable laws in this circunstance.
This is not a free nmarket. You should not sit back and allow
them to take away, to influence our econony in a negative way
i ke they have been for years and years and years.”

3:37:47 PM

JAVEN OSE stated that he represents the roughly 500,000 angry
Al askans that go the gas punp weekly. He offered his support
for HB 68. He related his understanding that gasoline prices in
Wom ng, |daho, and Montana are all under $1.50. He inquired as
to how that could be when those states do not own the resources
as Al askans own theirs. He offered his belief that whatever the

excuse, fuel is less expensive in the other states. He opi ned
that nmarket forces are at work since the market has been
mani pul at ed. He specul ated that another bill may be considered
that conpares Al aska prices to Seattle prices. He stated that

Al aska has nothing in comon with Seattle’s denographics and he
urged legislators to use |Idaho, Mntana, and Wom ng since those
states have simlar population bases. He inmagined that gasoline
prices are $1.29 per gallon in those states. He suggested that
if Alaska' s constitution were changed by adding a semn col on and

a paragraph in the best interest’s clause, to read: “; unless
the product is refined in state.” Then the state could sell
crude oil to the refinery and nake adjustnments or subsidize

Al aska’s fuel sold in the state. He offered his belief that
there is not any reason to continue with these high prices. He
rel at ed hi s under st andi ng t hat Representati ve Coghi | |
Representative Chenault, and Chair O son represent the districts
that contain the Flint Hlls and N kiski refineries. He stated
he coul d understand they may be reluctant to pass this bill.

MR, OSE indicated that if the refineries say they cannot nake a

dol |l ar here sonmeone else can “fill their shoes up and they’l

still make a profit.” He specul ated the conpani es probably need
to perform mai nt enance. He further opined that a deal should
have been nade to mnimze or elimnate in state tariffs. He
t hanked nenbers. He said, “There are a |lot of people out here
that are angry about filling their gas tanks up daily. | hear
it every time | go to the gas station.” He related that he

encourages people to contact their |egislators, but recognized
it is hard to take tinme off from work to do so. He concl uded,
“I"'min favor of HB 68. I"’m sick and tired of getting gouged
for my own gasoline, the highest prices in Alaska where we're
supposed to own our own resource. The state should step up to
the bat and at |east change the constitution or subsidize it.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- April 1, 2009



Sell it for $30 a barrel to the refinery and keep it under $2 a
gal lon.”

3:42: 26 PM

PAUL KENDALL stated he also submtted witten testinony. He
suggested full disclosure. He recalled the testinony about the
attorney general’s report, which he opined has no foundation
He said, “You know, it's a funny thing about the truth,
gent | enen. W all know what the truth is. The truth is there
is sonething wong in Al aska when it conmes to energy.” He asked
menbers to look at the larger picture. He pointed to the
800, 000 vehicles in Alaska using 1,000 gallons of gasoline per
year equals about 800 mllion gallons per year. He recalled
testinmony of 295 mllion gallons. However, in calculating the
cost of the gasoline, adding in diesel, propane, and heating
oil, it is understandable why a pipeline can be two-thirds enpty
for over 30 years, but the oil conpanies can still make profits.
He said, “Your |eadership, you folks are failing us, gentlenen.
Now whether it is willfully and wantonly or whether you are just

isolated is the big question.” He opined that just when he
thinks that the graft is permanent, he has watched the
| egislature dig into issues that are brilliant. He offered his

belief that the first obligation is to provide for the energy
needs of residents, such as electricity, water, and clean air.
He quoted Peter Robinson, Chevron, who said, “You will find no
financial security. You will find no job security. You will
find no environnmental security unless you find energy security.”
He stated that society is at the brink of defining energy, which

he thought would be wonderful. However, he highlighted that if
menbers are dom nated by the oil conpanies and their influence,
that “we’re going nowhere.” He related that the country is

facing difficult tinmes and the |egislature should assess where
it is in ternms of providing energy for honmes. He pushed for an
energy conference that he has requested for several years.

3:47:15 PM

EDI TH TOM NY stated she and her husband both support HB 68. She
opined that it is time for Alaskans to “get their due” in
gasoline prices. She opined that Al aska seens to be subsidi zing
the Lower 48 gasoline prices with high prices. She rel ated her
under st andi ng that Al askans pay hi gher prices than anyone in the

nati on. She said, “I think that is sort of ridiculous, and we
have the refineries sitting out here about four mles from us.”
She offered that heating oil prices were terrible. She

expl ai ned that she thinks she speaks for many retired people on

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- April 1, 2009



fi xed incomes who cannot afford to stay in Alaska with high fue
prices. She stated that Al aska has been her honme for 50 years,
and she’d like to stay in Al aska but she cannot afford to stay
if the prices keep escal ating. She further opined that people
in Interior Alaska “especially get the raw end of the stick.”
She did not think the Interior was treated fairly wth respect
to oil and hopes that the natural gas |ine provides reasonable
gas prices. She said she thinks that in general with respect o
gasoline and heating oil prices that “we get ripped off.” She
said, “I think the |egislative body ought to be |ooking into our
situation, the Al askan situation”. She also said she felt that
Al askans need economc justice and hopes the legislature wll
hel p. She concl uded: “Don’t base prices on the price paid at
the punp.” She urged nenbers to resist the high gasoline taxes
that other states currently pay.

3:50: 09 PM

DAVI D OTNESS stated that he is a lifelong Al askan and has worked
on the Trans-Al aska Pipeline System pipeline where he observed
the evolution of the petrol eum industry. He noted that in his
| atest career in which he transports fuel, he has transferred
fuel on a barge from Hawaii and noved it up the Kuskokw m He
opined that this industry has set the standard for holding facts

and bending facts. He offered his belief that the oil industry
is the nost profitable industry in the world. As an Al aska
citizen, enduring fuel <costs, it is difficult to watch fuel
"sail by". He said, "I'm ashaned of how we dealt with this

i ncredi ble resource and had it turned around on us like this."
He further opined that in the 60s and 70s Al aska was naive and
| ost profits from oil. Additionally, he stated that this does
not pass the "snell test". He recalled prior testinony that it
may take a constitutional change, and he thought that would have
support. He said, “W can't continue to strangle ourselves |ike

this.” He explained that Cordova has a sole source distributor

He pointed out that Al aska has a serious issue and that we mnust
deal with it to take care of Alaskans. He said, “lI don’t think
this is a handout. | think it is a responsibility to ourselves.

| sure hope you take that into consideration.”
3:54:10 PM

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director, Alaska Trucking Association
(ATA), stated that the Al aska Trucking Association is not sure
that the ten percent is correct or that any nunber is correct.
He opined that prices should be narket driven. He offered his
belief that there is nore market force than has been recogni zed.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- April 1, 2009



Secondly, the ATA is concerned about having a reliable source
and supply of fuel. Finally, ATA is concerned about jobs. He
explained that ATA enploys many drivers to transport fuel
t hroughout the state, ranging from Fairbanks to Southcentral
Al aska. He expressed concern for jobs at the refineries and the
Al aska Rail road. He asked legislature to take a second | ook
before you “junp off this cliff.”

3:55: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked to put on record how this bill would
i mpact | obs.

MR. THOMPSON responded that if there is not a reliable source of
fuel, that trucks would not need drivers, that termnals wll
not need warehouse people or dispatchers. He specul ated that
there could be serious job loss with passage of this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH related he is trying to get the connection
that holding an industry accountable for price would have that
effect. He said he is |ooking forward to nore di scussion.

3:57:11 PM

CLYDE (ED) SN FFEN, JR, Senior Assistant Attorney General,
Commercial/Fair Business Section, Cvil D vision (Anchorage),
Department of Law (DOL), introduced hinself.

3:57:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if he has considered definitions of
exor bitant or excessive. He related his understanding that the
terms would either need to be defined or would state price
gouging is unlawful and the bill would provide the paraneters.

MR. SNI FFEN offered that he has struggled with the definitions
since the terns are broad. He explained that the standard does

not have nuch |egal precedence. He related that a handful of
states on the East Coast have used this |anguage in their price
gouging laws and have defined the terns in various ways. Thi s
bill would key exorbitant and excessive to ten percent pricing
over Seattle prices. He agreed the term would be difficult to
def i ne.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL offered his belief that that the term
shoul d be defined or “scrapped.” He inquired as to whether it
woul d be clearer to state that it was unlawful to price gouge.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- April 1, 2009



MR. SNI FFEN stated that any subjective standard that would give
the attorney general a standard to |look at for determning
whet her the price is unlawful would rmake it clearer.

3:59: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL offered his belief that the ten percent
is a policy call. He inquired as to whether the state has ever
i ndexed to another state for consuner protection.

MR. SN FFEN answer ed no.
4:00:19 PM

CHAIR OLSON inquired as to whether other states’ price gouging
laws are triggered by a disaster.

MR. SNI FFEN answered yes. He offered that nobst states’ |laws are
triggered when an energency is declared, typically tied to a
natural disaster. He recalled that two states have |aws that
all ow the governor to declare an energency. In those instances,
the law states that a conpany cannot charge excessive or
exorbitant prices, with excessive or exorbitant |oosely defined
to nean prices that are in excess of the prices charged in areas
in which a narket energency does not exist or imediately prior
to an energency. He indicated that a tangible nmarker is
available to determ ne excessiveness, but all of those price
gouging laws are tied to natural disasters.

4:01: 54 PM

CHAIR OLSON related his understanding that conpared wth
Seattle, Anchorage prices for groceries are 25 percent higher
utilities are 14 percent higher, and nedical costs are 10
percent higher. He inquired as to whether the state could
target costs for one commodity and not anot her.

MR. SNI FFEN opined that the legislature has broad discretion to
enact legislation that is in the best interests of the state
He agreed there are many comodities that enjoy profit margins

that are simlar to petroleum products. Gasoline and refined
petroleum are items the <citizens rely on nore than other
products. However, there are other consuner goods and

coomodities that have simlar profits that are not regulated or
subj ect to caps.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- April 1, 2009



4:03:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH opined that the rural communities have
endured extreme costs. He inquired whether the governor could
decl are an energency.

MR SNIFFEN stated that rural Alaska faces a unique and
difficult situation wth respect to fuel, wth scattered
villages and different nodes of delivery. He opined that if
there was a way to declare an energency that the state would
need to consider the relief. He asked if the relief would be to
cap fuel costs by nmerchants or for distributors. He offered his
belief that the state would need to devel op sone type of schene
that would encourage delivery of fuel, but at the same tine
provide sone relief to the communities. He stated that it is
somet hing that bears further consideration of the |ogistics.

4:05:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked if that nmechanism could be facilitated
in this legislation

MR SNIFFEN related that this bill would require serious
tweaking to get to distributors who mght be delivering fuel in
those rural areas as opposed to just refiners. He stated that

the state would have to go downstream from the refiners to
determ ne the purchase price and selling price to determne if
there would be sone place along the chain to inplenent sone
price controls to provide consuners sone relief. He said he was
not sure how that could be inplenented.

4:06:14 PM

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL related his understanding that the
concern is about excessive pricing and profit. He offered his
belief that the refiners were “bunped pretty hard with the
uptick in oil prices as well because of the feed stock that they
had to buy.” He said it would seem to him that the excessive
profiting was nore on the upstream producers instead of the
downstream refi ners.

MR. SNI FFEN agreed. He said there was definitely an increase in
the cost of fuel for refineries and upstream of that he was not
certain. None of the refineries are vertically integrated in
that they do not own the source of supply. He agreed the
refineries were also paying the higher cost of fuel and those
costs eventually were passed on to consumers.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- April 1, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL reiterated that the bill my target the
wrong group of people. He opined that if the refiners were
targeted, that using a single state, such as Washington, which
has a different denographic, may not provide the average cost.
He inquired as to whether the area should be broadened to
determ ne the average gasoline price.

MR. SNI FFEN  expl ai ned that Washington is an attractive

conparison due to its close proximty to Al aska. He related
that the potential sources of conpetition for refineries in
Al aska would conme from the Pacific Northwest. He pointed out

the problem with conparing Alaska's prices to states west of the
M ssissippi are the huge nega refineries in the Gulf Coast that
can basically “turn shoe polish into gasoline” that our
refineries cannot. Addi tionally, those states have pipelines
that enconpass many states and the availability of that
relatively inexpensive source of supply is not available on the
West  Coast . He opined that California, Washington, and O egon
must ship gasoline through the Panama Canal if they want gas
from refineries in the @lf Coast. He further opined that
typically prices are nore expensive on the Wst Coast. He
offered his belief that if Al aska wanted to use a marker outside
of Alaska, that it would nmake nore sense to nmake it a state that
is nore relevant to Al aska prices, such as those states cl osest
to Al aska. In further response to Representative Coghill, M.
Sniffen explained that Al aska prices have stabilized sonewhat
hovering around the $2.35 mark in Anchorage, wth prices a
little higher in Fairbanks. He said he did not know what m ght
happen to oil prices. He further explained that one reason for
the lag has to do with how quickly other places are able to drop
their prices due to conpetitive forces. He stated that it is
slower in oligopoly markets such as Al aska and Hawaii. He hoped
that prices would continue to drop

4:12:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  COGHI LL asked i f there is a r easonabl e
explanation for the lag tine.

MR. SNI FFEN agreed that the lag is interesting. He offered that
there is some truth to refineries keeping prices high until the
sl ow conpetition drives price down. However, he also thought
that refineries have long-term contracts for oil deliveries from
pl aces such as Russia and South Anerica. He opined that it may
be a while before conpanies can recover the costs. Thus, in
markets |i ke Alaska that have small volunes, the turnover is not

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- April 1, 2009



gquite as fast. Thus, sone lag in prices nmay be economcally
justified. He reiterated that some lag nay be due to the
conpani es taking advantage of their oligopolistic situation. He
said, “That bubble probably consists of a mx of some of those
t hi ngs.” He agreed that mght be area to explore to see if
sonet hi ng can reduce the disparity.

4:14: 22 PM
REPRESENTATI VE BUCH i nqui red about scope of his investigation.

MR. SNI FFEN stated that the investigation was fairly broad. He
explained the attorney general reviewed gasoline pricing at
sever al di fferent | evel s, rangi ng from the refinery,
distribution, and retail |evel. He offered that the attorney
general’s office gathered information from retailers to the
refiners to determ ne how prices were set, what types of profits
were nmade, whether the conpanies were subsidizing other
shortfalls. He opined that it seenmed the prices were “driven at
the refinery level” rather than by the retailers.

4:16: 08 PM

MR. SNIFFEN, in response to Chair O son stated that he has not
read the proposed Washington |egislation that proposes a 37.5
cent gasoline tax on products shipped to Al aska, but he is aware
of the bill. He said he inmagined that it would have sone affect
on gasoline prices. However he said he thought that the price
at the punp has little to do with the cost. He said”

Wen oil is $150 per barrel it doesn’'t cost the
producers any nore to produce it than when it’'s $25
per barrel. It’s really a market driven thing and so
when you roll extra taxes in that’s giving it an extra
cost that | suspect sone of the price |eaders here are
going to figure into the mx. But, if there are other
conpetitors who have fat enough margi ns out there that
they can absorb that cost, it may not spike $.40 right
away; it may go up a little; it may not go up at all.
W' Il have to see how the market reacts to that. But
| suspect...worst case scenario, it’s not going to be
good for gasoline pricing.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL inquired as to whether the state taxes
had any role in pricing.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- April 1, 2009



MR. SN FFEN said he was not certain he had an answer to that
guesti on.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL opined that it probably is a question for
t he Departnent of Revenue.

4:19:26 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wished to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 68.

The committee took an at-ease from4:19 p.m to 4:20 p.m
4:19: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETE PETERSEN, Al aska State Legislature, after
listening to public testinony, related his understanding that

t he average Al askan is concerned about overpricing of fuel. He
acknow edged that sone adjustnents nmay need to be made in the
bill to reach the ultimate goal. However, he stated that he did

not think that menbers can dism ss the idea conpletely and all ow
the sem -nonopolistic situation to continue in Alaska and for
Al askans to continue to pay excessive prices. He recalled M.
Sniffen nentioned his investigation. However, wunfortunately,
his investigation was not for price gouging but was for price
fixing and coll usion. He observed that had his investigation
been conducted for price gouging that he nmay have asked for
different data and reached different conclusions. He advi sed
that the reason for the bill is to give the attorney general’s
office “another arrow in their quiver” to try to protect the
Al aska consuner from high prices.

4:22:02 PM

CHAIR OLSON recalled that M. Sniffen indicated that nearly
every other state that has price gouging has been triggered by
natural disasters.

4:22:25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL appl auded Representative Petersen for
bringing the matter forward as it has resulted in worthwhile
di scussi ons. He indicated that he struggles wth whether
refiners are the right place to go since it my “squeeze the
very people that we want to encourage.” He expl ained that the
val ue of the product went to the producers of the product, not
to the transporters or the refiners. He said, “We mght be

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- April 1, 2009



barking up the wong tree here.” However, there mght be sone
reason to review this due to the lag between crude oil prices

and prices at the punp. He suggested that the commttee may
want to consider a percentage of prices to allow refiners to
recover, but the rest 1is excessive. He questioned wusing

Washington State only as the basis for determning the index

He further explained the fornula, consists of netback based on
an indexed price of oil. He characterized the system as a
convol uted system He suggested that the market price could be
used as the gauge for excessive charges to determne price
gougi ng. He al so suggested the ternms exorbitant and excessive
may be difficult to define. He further suggested that that the
conditions be established and specified for unlawful prices. He
opi ned the |anguage should be concrete and not subjective. He
inquired as to whether the sponsor has considered a formul ation.
He offered that the Al aska North Slope (ANS) pricing is based on
a netback system which is to determine the selling price,
calculate the transportation cost, and then deternmine the price
at the well head. He reiterated a simlar fornmulation may need
to be consi dered.

4:25: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN stated that Washington was sel ected due
to its close proximty to Al aska. He informed nenbers that he
did not conpare price differential in other states for gasoline
prices over tinme. He agreed to consider changing the percentage
and to elimnate the term exorbitant and consider a formla
i nst ead.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL clarified that he is looking for a

st andar d. He related a scenario in which all refineries shut
dowmn in Alaska and all gasoline needed to be inported. He
opined that diesel would probably be refined in state. The

state would need to consider what it would cost to buy its
gasol i ne and whether Washington State would be the natural point
of purchase or if it would be purchased globally perhaps in

| ndonesi a. He advised that if the state could calculate the
cost of gasoline and transportation costs, it <could better
understand excessi ve. He inquired as to whether that

deterni nati on has been done.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN answered that he has not | ooked at costs
of inmporting fuel from Indonesia. He offered that Southeast
Al aska does inport the majority of its fuel from Washington. He
opi ned that Southeast prices have conme down and are currently
| ower than in many other parts of Al aska.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- April 1, 2009



4:28: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN i nfornmed menbers that he did not enter
this to put refineries out of business. He offered his belief
that an option to initiate an investigation should be avail able
to the attorney general if evidence existed that pricing was
substantially higher than traditional pricing. He pointed to
the lag on the graph previously noted, and indicated that prices

still are not as low as nornal prices. He nmaintained that
prices are still considerably higher in Alaska than in
Washi ngt on.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL advised that before he would fee
confortable, he would want to know what inport costs are
associated wth gasoline. He inquired as to whether the
percentage over the tinefrane of the Iag. He further inquired
as to whether he has considered a tine |lag versus a percentage.

4:30:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN recalled the average difference in
price, according to the graph was $.71 cents difference. He
opi ned that constituted a 25 to 30 percent range of difference.
However, traditionally the price difference had been ten
per cent . He highlighted the reason for prices to continually
stay higher since normally “there mght be a blip” but prices
woul d | evel out over a nuch shorter period of time. He noted in
the nmeantine prices have renmai ned hi gher since the nmarket peaked
ni ne nont hs ago.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL with respect to the price lag offered
that Washington denographics consist of about two mllion
consuners as opposed to perhaps a half a mllion consuners in
Al aska’s nmarket. He opined that one market is a volunme narket
and the other is a non-volume market, which could account for
the price difference. Thus, he highlighted it mght be
difficult to link and conpare the tw market prices. He
proposed that he would rather |ook at Alaska's narket and
determ ne whether that narket was excessive rather than to
conpare it to another market with a different sal es vol une.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN offered his wllingness to work to
create a better nmechani sm

4:32:56 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- April 1, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN inquired as to whether the attorney genera
could initiate an investigation.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said he was not certain. He offered his
belief that the attorney general mnust act on a request.

4:33:38 PM

DAVI D DUNSMORE, Staff, Representative Pete Petersen, referred to
the attorney general’s report which highlighted that currently
no |law exists to prohibit charging excessive prices for gasoline
or fuel oil unless the prices are a result of price fixing.
Therefore, the franmework does not exist for the attorney general
to enforce agai nst exorbitant pricing.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if the attorney general can initiate
an investigation with or wiwthout the bill.

MR. DUNSMORE explained that the attorney general would neke a
determ nation on whether state law is being obeyed. In this
case, the attorney general found there is not any evidence of
illegal activity. He highlighted that the attorney general’s
report and the House Judiciary Standing Comrittee report both
agreed that a conpetitive nmarket for refined petrol eum products
does not exist. Both reports indicated that high refinery
margins were one of the factors of wunusually high prices. He
mai ntai ned that currently there is not a price gouging law in
effect in Al aska.

4:35: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if the attorney general investigated
possi bl e col | usi on. He asked for the difference between the
t wo.

REPRESENTATI VE = PETERSEN expl ained that price fixing and
collusion is when conpanies collectively decide to charge a
certain price and when the prices would change. He inplied that
it is difficult to prove those types of cases because the
conpetitor’s prices are visible and it is not necessary to
comuni cat e. The owner could just go down the street and | ook
at the conpetitor’s price, and return to his business and change
the price. Thus, collusion and price fixing usually is a “high
hurdl e” to surnount.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN commented that it is obvious that sonething
needs to be done. He offered his belief that the bill is well-

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- April 1, 2009



i ntentioned. He declared that he cannot currently support the
bill since it seens to represent a variety of price control and
government “nmeddling” that could cause unintended consequences,
including that it could potentially put refineries out of

busi ness. He enphasized that the state needs nore refineries,
not |less, particularly since the airports depend on them He
stated that he does not like the high prices of gasoline, but
this bill doesn't seem to fix anything, but is a case of
“throwing the baby out wth the bath water.” He stated he has
sonme grave concerns and does not have any solutions to suggest.
4:39:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN related that wunder the bill that

establishes price gouging, the attorney general would obtain
different information fromrefineries during an investigation on
pricing than it would when investigating collusion. Under the
bill, the burden of proof rests with the refinery to prove it is
not price gougi ng.

CHAI R OLSON offered his belief the larger issue is not addressed
in the bill. He pointed to the efficiency of both plants. He
related that the plant in N kiski would be much nore efficient
if it was using 100 percent Cook Inlet petroleum He opined
that the North Pole refinery would be nore efficient if it used
natural gas. He offered his belief that is what keeps the price
high. He opined that the N kiski plant is designed to burn Cook
Inlet crude oil but is only using 25 percent at this tine. He
ascertained that is the stunmbling block at this point and is
sonet hi ng that cannot be addressed in the bill.

4:40:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT recalled earlier testinony questioning
whether the bill is targeting the right person. He said he did
not know. However, he opined that the increase in crude oil
price is not a profit margin for the oil refineries. He
indicated that as the crude oil prices increased and decreased,
that Tesoro’'s stock price has dropped considerably. He opi ned
that if the conpany was price gouging that the net profit would
be reflected in the stock report. He reiterated that Tesoro's
prices dropped four-fold. He rem nded nenbers that the Ni kiski
plant is in his district. He observed that they provide diese
and jet fuel to the Railbelt. He offered his concerns that if
the bill is going to target an entity that this mght be the
wong entity to target. He offered to work with the bill
sponsor. He recalled the price a mle fromthe refinery is as

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- April 1, 2009



high as any place along the Railbelt. He indicated his
constituents share the sane concerns. He highlighted that he is
not sure if this bill is the right way to address price gougi ng.

4:44: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN agreed that the issue is a high priority
for everyone in the |egislature. He pointed out that everyone
pays the prices for gasoline. He related his understanding that
it goes back to economes of scale, that it takes a certain
anount to run a refinery. He indicated that if refineries could

reduce their costs it could help. He recognized that the
refineries also are purchasing $140 per barrel oil since the
refineries also pay for the product. Al aska’s population is
about 666,000 whereas other states may have 4 to 6 mnmllion
peopl e. He opined that the cost of the product may al so depend
on the econom es of scale. He referred to the cost of the

product, the cost of refining, and the consuner base and
inquired as to whether the econom es of scal e have been studi ed.
He characterized Al aska as an isol ated base.

4:46: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN suggested that the refineries in
Washi ngton purchases sone of their crude oil from Valdez, ship
it to Washington, then back to Southeast, and still can sell it
cheaper than the in state refineries; and it makes one question
why refineries are not nore efficient. He surm sed they may
need an upgrade. He offered appreciation that everyone
recogni zes this as a high priority problem

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN, in response to Representative Neunan,
suggested one difference between Al aska and Washington is that
Al aska refineries have carved out niche markets for their areas,
so they have nore pricing control, while Wshington uses a
supply and demand net hod. He pointed to the information in the
attorney general and HIUD reports. He admtted that he has not
done extensive research on refinery costs based on size.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN appl auded the sponsor’s work on the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN, in further response to Representative
Neuman, offered that econonies of scale are nentioned in both of

the reports. He agrees that some sem -nonopolistic situations
exi st in Alaska since two min refineries exist. He
acknowl edged the bill needs sone inprovenents. He reiterated

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- April 1, 2009



his willingness to work together to try to make this work for
everyone.

4:51: 05 PM

MR. DUNSMORE referred to a chart in the bill packet titled
“Figure 2: Average Prices and Margins for Petroleum Refiners in
Al aska, Washington, and the U S., Septenber 2007 to Septenber
2008. Wiile it does not address refinery costs, the graph shows
the margins charged by Alaska refiners, prices charged by

Washi ngton refiners, and the U S. average cost. He interpreted
that for nost of the year the cost is in line wth Wshington
and U.S. average cost. The bill was introduced to address the

instance in which the Al aska prices spiked significantly nore
t han Washington or the U S The nmargins have been simlar to
the Lower 48 until June or July 2008.

4:53:18 PM

CHAIR OLSON stated that HB 68 would be held over for further
consi derati on.

4:53:23 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:53 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- April 1, 2009



